
1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
 
3.a February 28, 2023 Minutes    Suggested Action: Approval 

4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
 

5. NEW BUSINESS
 
5.a Estrada Annexation (ANX-1-23)   Suggested Action:

The applicant, Steven Estrada, seeks approval to have his property, Tax lot 3201 on
Assessors map 5N2817CA, situated in the City of Umatilla’s urban growth boundary
annexed into the City limits. Due to the contiguous border between his property and the
City limits he has chosen to Annex into the City.

 

6. DISCUSSION ITEMS
 
6.a Commission Information & Discussion   Suggested Action: Opportunity for commissioners

to ask and questions or share any information
6.b Community Development Director Check In   Suggested Action: An update on things

happening within the City of Umatilla

7. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
 

8. ADJOURNMENT
 

UMATILLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AGENDA

COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MARCH 28, 2023

6:30 PM
 

 

  

  

 
  

  

 

  

 

 

  

  

 
This institution is an equal opportunity provider. Discrimination is prohibited by Federal law. Special
accommodations to attend or participate in a city meeting or other function can be provided by
contacting City Hall at (541) 922-3226 or use the TTY Relay Service at 1-800-735-2900 for
appropriate assistance.

1

https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/umatilla-city/5c09c4f748017b3434a9f1ee104dbe590.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/umatilla-city/365a5abeaabce947bd88889238c339a30.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/umatilla-city/c638a2cb6916744c27a1331500e895df0.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/umatilla-city/5c48d6f3b4775715ccc744b0ff1b6b300.


UMATILLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
Minutes

COUNCIL CHAMBERS
FEBRUARY 28, 2023

6:30 PM
For more detail; a recording of the meeting is available upon request of staff

1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL

The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m.
A. Present: Commissioners Bruce McLane, Kelly Nobles, Carol Jones, Yesenia Leon-Tejeda
B. Absent: Keith Morgan, Jennifer Cooper, Enrique Navarro
C. Late arrival:
D. Staff present: Community Development Director, Brandon Seitz, Senior Planner, Jacob Foutz, JUB 

Transportation Planner, Spencer Montgomery 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

3.a January 24th, 2023 minutes Suggested Action: Approval
Motion to approve by Commissioner Nobles, seconded by Commissioner Jones. Motion Carried by 
consensus vote 4-0.
4. NEW BUSINESS

4.a Chapter 12 Transportation TSP Update (PA-1-23)  Suggested Action: A Plan Amendment
application to amend Chapter 12 of the City of Umatilla Comprehensive Plan. The
proposed text amendment will adopt and implement the new transportation system plan
(2023) into Chapter 12 of the Comprehensive Plan by reference. As well as adopt by
reference the previously adopted Interchange Area Management Plan (2011) and
Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan (2003). The amendment will also remove the old
transportation system plan (1999), Interchange Area Management Plan (2010), and
Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan (2003) in Chapter 12 of the Comprehensive Plan.

Chair McLane opened the hearing and read the Public Hearing Opening Statement into the 
record and asked if there was any challenge to jurisdiction, conflict of interests, or ex-parte 
contacts.
Chair McLane called for the staff report.
Planner Foutz gave the staff report, reviewing the criterion that must be met for the Plan 
amendment application. 
Spencer Montgomery, contract staff gave a presentation on the process of for the creation 
of the TSP.
Chair McLane asked for testimony from the applicant. The applicant was City.
Chair McLane asked for public testimony in favor. None.
Chair McLane asked for public testimony in Opposition. None.
Chair McLane asked for neutral public testimony. None.
Chair McLane asked for a rebuttal. None
Chair McLane called for a motion to close the hearing of PA-1-23. Motion to close by 
Commissioner Nobles. Second by Commissioner Jones. Motion carried 4-0
Chair McLane asked for any comments or deliberation.

3



Chair McLane called for a motion for approval of PA-1-23. Motion to approve by 
Commissioner Nobles. Seconded by Commissioner Cooper. Motion carried 4-0

5. DISCUSSION ITEMS

5.a Commission Information & Discussion  Suggested Action: Opportunity for commissioners
to ask and questions or share any information
Chair McLane explained why he chose to have this added to the agenda, as a time for commissioners to ask 
questions. 

5.b Community Development Director Check In  Suggested Action: An update on things
happening within the City of Umatilla
Director Seitz asked if the commission would like his check in to stay om the agenda, which they responded 
in the affirmative. 

6. ADJOURNMENT

This institution is an equal opportunity provider. Discrimination is prohibited by Federal law. Special 
accommodations to attend or participate in a city meeting or other function can be provided by 
contacting City Hall at (541) 922-3226 or use the TTY Relay Service at 1-800-735-2900 for 
appropriate assistance.

4



1

CITY OF UMATILLA PLANNING
COMMISSION
STAFF REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION
FOR
ANNEXATION ANX-1-23

HEARING DATE: March 28, 2023

REPORT PREPARED BY: Jacob Foutz, Senior
Planner

I. GENERAL INFORMATION AND FACTS

Applicant: Steven Estrada 
242 Main St, APT 246
Hermiston, OR 97838

Property Owner: Steven Estrada 
242 Main St, APT 246
Hermiston, OR 97838

Land Use Review: Annex a property that is in the UGB and 
contiguous to the City limits. 

Subject Property Description: Single Family home located at 242 Tucker Ave, 
Umatilla OR 97838, tax lot 3201 on Assessors 
map 5N2817CA.

Existing Zoning: Urban Residential (UGB)

Proposed New Zoning: Single-Family Residential (R-1)

II. NATURE OF REQUEST/APPLICABLE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND ZONING ORDINANCE 

PROVISIONS

The applicant, Steven Estrada, seeks approval to have his property, Tax lot 3201 on Assessors map 
5N2817CA, situated in the City of Umatilla’s urban growth boundary annexed into the City limits. 
Due to the contiguous border between his property and the City limits he has chosen to Annex into 
the City.

5



ANX-1-23 / Estrada Annexation Page 2 of 4

Approval of this request is subject to Section 10-13-4 of the City of Umatilla Zoning Ordinance 
which requires a Type IV procedure review and for a zoning designation to be assigned that most 
closely corresponds to the Comprehensive Plan designation unless an amendment to the Zoning 
Map is also proposed.  

City Staff recommends that if the annexation is approved, the property be zoned City Single-family 
residential as it is the designation that most closely corresponds with the subject property’s current 
use and surrounding City Zoning. 

III. ANALYSIS

The applicable decision criteria are listed in Chapter 13, Section 4C, as outlined in this report, and 
the procedures for a Type IV review are contained under Chapter 14, Sections 6(C) and 7 of the 
City of Umatilla Zoning Ordinance.  Generally, unless otherwise noted, if a request is found to be 
consistent with the Zoning Ordinance it is considered to be consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan.
A. City of Umatilla Zoning Ordinance Approval Criteria

All of the following criteria listed under Section 10-13-4C of the Zoning Ordinance must be 
satisfied and supported with findings and reasons as to how each criterion is met for this request 
to be approved.

1. The site is within the urban growth boundary for the City.

Findings: The site is located on Tucker Ave within the Urban Growth Boundary for the City of 
Umatilla. Tucker Avenue is located south of the Umatilla River and East of Powerline Road. 

Conclusion: The site is located within the Urban Growth Boundary for the City of Umatilla. 

2. It is economically and technically feasible to provide services to the area.

Findings: The City of Umatilla has water and wastewater facilities running along the North
property line of the subject property on Tucker Ave. The subject property is connected to City 
water and wastewater. Due to the connection, the applicant has chosen to annex into the City of 
Umatilla. In addition to water and wastewater the access to the site is considered a service. Tucker 
avenue is not improved to a City standard and therefore will need to be improved along the frontage 
of the property to a City standard. A signed waiver of remonstrance agreement could allow for the 
annexation now, with the owner required to pay their proportionate share of improvements at a 
later date. This could be advantageous to the City and applicant, allowing for the improvements to 
be made at the same time other improvements to the road are made, creating a more uniform road. 

Conclusion: The subject property will need to improve the frontage of the property to a City 
standard as required by the City of Umatilla public works standards unless a waiver of 
remonstrance is signed by the applicant and the City of Umatilla. This will be included as a 
condition of approval. 

3. The proposal is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan or substantial changes in conditions 

6



ANX-1-23 / Estrada Annexation Page 3 of 4

have occurred which render the Plan inapplicable to the annexation.

Findings: For annexation requests, Comprehensive Plan Policy 14.10.103 specifies that the City 
will annex lands upon request “when it is demonstrated that such annexations are consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan policies and within the capabilities of the City’s services and facilities.”  
This policy is implemented in the City of Umatilla Zoning Ordinance, as outlined and discussed 
under Sections III(A)(1) and (2) of this report, which require property proposed to be annexed to 
be located within the urban growth boundary and for services to be technically and economically 
feasible to serve the property.  As indicated above, these provisions were found to be met or 
capable of being met.

Conclusion: The Comprehensive Plan recognizes property within the urban growth boundary as 
land intended to be brought into the city limits when requested if services can technically and 
economically be provided to serve the use of the property. Services to the subject property already 
exist. The planning staff concludes that the proposal complies with all other applicable 
Comprehensive Plan policies concerning this annexation request.

B. City of Umatilla Zoning Ordinance Section 10-13-4(B) – Zoning Designation

When approving an annexation request, Section 10-13-4(B) of the Zoning Ordinance requires the 
City to assign a zoning designation that most closely corresponds to the Comprehensive Plan 
designation, unless an amendment to the Zoning Map is proposed.

Findings: Staff recommends that if the annexation is approved the property be zoned City Single-
family residential as it is the designation that most closely corresponds with the existing Umatilla 
County urban residential designation as well as the surrounding City zoning. To avoid a 
nonconforming use and to match the subject property’s existing use, staff recommend the 
assignment of Single-family residential. 

Conclusion: The Staff recommends that if the annexation is approved the property be zoned City 
Single-family residential as it is the designation that allows for the existing use to continue. 

IV. SUMMARY CONCLUSIONS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION

This request by the applicant, Steven Estrada, to annex Tax lot 3201 on Assessors map 5N2817CA,
situated in the City of Umatilla’s urban growth boundary into the City limits and assign a City 
Single-family residential zoning designation will meet all of the applicable decision criteria for 
annexation into the city limits.

Therefore, based on the information in Sections I and II of this report, and the above review criteria, 
findings of fact, and conclusions contained in Section III, Staff recommends the Planning 
Commission recommend APPROVAL of this annexation request, ANX-1-23, to the Umatilla 
City Council to annex the following into the city limits;

Tax Lot 3201 on Assessors map 5N2817CA, known as 242 Tucker Avenue, Umatilla, OR 97882 
as City Single-family Residential.  

7



ANX-1-23 / Estrada Annexation Page 4 of 4

V. Conditions of approval:

1. The applicant shall improve the frontage of the property to a City standard as required by 
the City of Umatilla public works standards unless a waiver of remonstrance is signed by 
the applicant and the City of Umatilla prior to the approval of the ordinance.

EXHIBITS

Exhibit A Notice Map 
Exhibit B Property owner signature/application 
Exhibit C Draft waiver of remonstrance

8



242 Tucker 

TUCKER

STEPHENS

LINCOLN

KE
NN

ED
Y

Source: Esri, Maxar, Earthstar Geographics, and the GIS User Community

ESTRADA ANNEXATION (ANX-1-23)
Tax Lot 3201 on Assessors Map 5N2817CA

MAP DISCLAIMER: No warranty is made as to the
accuracy, reliability or completeness of this data.
Map should be used for reference purposes only.

Not survey grade or for legal use.
Created by Jacob Foutz, on 2/24/2023

Legend
Subject Property Tax Lots 4-5-22 City Limits

0 50 100 150 200
Feet

.*NOTICE GIVEN TO PROPERTY OWNERS WITHIN 100' Current Zoning: UGB Urban Residential 
Zoning after Annexation: City Single-Family Residential 

9



10



11



12



13



14



Return to: City of Umatilla
P.O. Box 130
Umatilla, OR  97882

WAIVER OF REMONSTRANCE

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into this ________day of ______ _, 2023, by and 
between Steven Estrada, ("Owner") and the City of Umatilla, a municipal corporation, ("City"),

W I T N E S S E T H :

WHEREAS, the Owner has petitioned the City for annexation for the territory legally described as 
follows:

Umatilla County, Carelle Addition, Block I, Lot 9, Umatilla County, Oregon
Umatilla County Plat Map 5N2817CA, Tax Lot 03201

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the City approving Annexation for the territory legally 
described above in the County of Umatilla, it is agreed as follows:

1.  Owner will pay his proportionate share for the construction of any future waterline extensions or 
sewer main extensions which may serve the territory and to pay all water and sewer charges charged or 
assessed according to city ordinances and policies as they now exist or may hereafter be amended or 
adopted.

2.  Owner agrees to comply with all ordinances, rules, regulations and policies of the City as they 
now exist or may hereafter be adopted or changed regarding the extension of waterlines and sewer mains.

3.  Owner will pay his proportionate share for the construction of any street improvements, 
including curbs, gutters and sidewalks, which may serve the territory.

4.  Owner understands that no extension of waterlines or sewer mains or street improvements to 
serve the territory may be made without the written approval of the City.

5.  In the event the formation of a local improvement district which includes the territory described 
above, or any part thereof, the Owner promises and agrees to join in the petition to create any such district 
for the extension of waterlines or sewer mains or street improvements, or any combination of them, and 
waives and gives up for itself and its successors in interest any objection it may now have or hereafter may 
have to the formation of such improvement district and to the assessments to be made in the formation, 
activation and continuation of such district.

6.  The owner for himself and his successors in interest in and to the territory described above, or 
any part thereof, waives and gives up the right of remonstrance that he or his successors in interests may 
have or hereafter may have to the formation of a local improvement district for the extension of waterlines 
or sewer mains or street improvements or any combination of them.  In the event that Owner or his 
successors in interest in and to the territory described above, or any part thereof, fail to join in the petition 
for formation of said local improvement district, the Owner and his successors in interest do hereby 
constitute and appoint the then mayor or city administrator of the City as his attorney-in-fact and as the 
attorney-in-fact for each of the successors or owners of each or any part of the territory described above to 
sign and deliver a petition to the City to consent to the formation of such improvement district with full 
power to perform and bind the territory described above, and each and every part thereof, and to do all 
things necessary to complete the petition to create a local improvement district for the purpose of extending 
waterlines, or sewer mains or street improvements or any combination of them, and this power of attorney is 
coupled with an interest so as to be irrevocable as to the territory described above, or any portion thereof.

16



7.  This agreement constitutes the complete understanding by and between the parties concerning 
the formation of local improvement districts.  There are no other agreements or understandings between the 
parties, concerning this matter, oral, written or otherwise.

8.  As used herein, the singular shall include the plural, and the plural the singular.  The masculine 
and neuter shall each include the masculine, feminine and neuter, as the context requires.  In construing this 
agreement and where the context so requires, all grammatical changes shall be implied to make the 
provisions in this agreement apply equally to corporations and to individuals.

_____________________________________________
  Steven Estrada, Owner                    

       
STATE OF OREGON )

) ss. _________________________, 2023
County of Umatilla )

Personally appeared                                        and acknowledged said instrument to be his/her
voluntary act and deed.

Before me:

_______________________________________
Notary Public for Oregon
My Commission Expires:

CITY OF UMATILLA

By:  _________________________________________
Caden Sipe, Mayor

STATE OF OREGON )
) ss. _________________________, 2023

County of Umatilla )

Personally appeared Caden Sipe who, being duly sworn or affirmed, did say that he is the Mayor of 
the City of Umatilla, an Oregon Municipal Corporation, and that said instrument was signed in behalf of 
said corporation by authority of its city council; and they acknowledged said instrument to be its voluntary 
act and deed.

Before me: _______________________________________
Notary Public for Oregon
My Commission Expires:

Return to: City of Umatilla
P.O. Box 130
Umatilla, OR  97882

Page 2  Waiver of Remonstrance

17


	Planning Commission Agenda
	2020-998- - February 28, 2023 Minutes.docx
	2020-946- - ANX-1-23 Staff Report Estrada Annexation.docx
	2020-946- - Estrada Notice Map.pdf
	2020-946- - ANX-1-23 Application.pdf
	2020-946- - 242 Tucker Waiver of Remonstrance_Estrada.docx

